
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

THURSDAY, JUNE 16, 2016
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Larry Hudkins 
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery

Commissioners Absent: Todd Wiltgen, Vice Chair

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on June 15, 2016.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:32
a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 9, 2016 STAFF MEETING
MINUTES

MOTION: Avery moved and Schorr seconded approval of the June 9, 2016 Staff
Meeting minutes.  Avery, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted yes. 
Wiltgen was absent.  Motion carried 4-0. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Report on Conversation with Governor Ricketts

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Schorr seconded approval of the addition to the
agenda.  Schorr, Hudkins, Avery and Amundson voted yes.  Wiltgen was
absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



 3 BUDGET UPDATE - Dennis Meyer, Budget & Fiscal Officer

Meyer gave an overview of Lancaster County, Property Tax Funded Budgets, Fiscal Year
(FY) 2017 Requested Compared to FY 2016 Adopted (Exhibit A), noting the document
reflects the General Fund and Building Fund and shows a net change of $2,808,609.
He said the Board will also have to decide how to address the Railroad Transportation
Safety District (RTSD) levy and the Bridge and Road and Highway Funds, adding the
$2,808,609 figure includes $1,000,000 in additional property tax going to the Bridge
and Road and Highway Funds.  Meyer also proposed moving $500,000 from the Keno
Fund towards the East Beltway Project which would reduce the Keno Fund transfer to
the General Fund by that amount.

A) Staff Secure Facility - Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC)
Director

Meyer said there has been a reduction in the number of Juvenile Probation supervised
youth at the Youth Services Center (YSC) in recent months which has decreased their
revenues.  As a result, the County will need to put an additional $722,831 into YSC.  He
said YSC has reduced its expenditure budget by approximately $150,000 through
elimination of some positions but said those reductions won’t make up for the revenue
loss. 

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, recommended the County phase
out staff-secure operations and collaborate with State Probation and other stakeholders
in finding other placements for those youth.  NOTE: There are currently ten youth in
the staff-secure facility which houses youth who don’t require a high level of security. 
Nine are under the supervision of Juvenile Probation and one is from a contract county. 
She said the County could then explore whether another entity would be interested in
utilizing the space to serve youth.  Schindler said it will not reduce staffing and said she
is not suggesting the County operate the facility.  

Hudkins asked whether there are enough community-based facilities to “take up the
slack.”  Sara Hoyle, Human Services Director, appeared and said the County already
provides community-aid funding to a shelter (Cedars Youth Services) for this population
and said they will work with Cedars to make sure the proper mechanisms are in place
to take these youth. Schindler said she has contacted Lincoln Public Schools (LPS)
about helping other providers with education issues. 

Lori Griggs, Chief Probation Officer, Juvenile Probation, appeared and requested
additional time for community stakeholders to plan for a safe alternative to staff-secure. 
Schindler noted stakeholder meetings were held.  

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



Griggs noted there have been cases where younger youth were held in staff-secure,
which she said was a softer, kinder detention setting, said now those youth would be
held in secure detention.  Schindler said the same type of programming can be
provided in secure detention or in a shelter for those lower level youth.

Meyer explained the County won’t realize immediate savings from closing the staff-
secure facility.  He also pointed out the Lancaster County taxpayers will be contributing
an additional $722,831 to YSC this year, adding the amount the County is receiving
from Probation is not fully covering costs.   

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to notify the appropriate
stakeholders that Lancaster County will close its staff-secure facility as of
July 11, 2016.

Griggs felt the decision should be postponed to allow the judiciary an opportunity to
provide input.  Schindler said she has been in contact with the Presiding Juvenile Court
Judge and said as long as the County provides staff-secure it enables youth to not be
placed into appropriate treatment.   

AMENDMENT: The maker of the motion and the seconder agreed to amend their
motion to direct Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, to prepare the appropriate
documentation.

Schindler offered to provide a list of names of who should receive notification.

ROLL CALL ON THE MOTION AS AMENDED: Avery, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson
voted yes.  Wiltgen was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

B) Corrections Administrator Position - Brad Johnson, Interim
Corrections Director

Brad Johnson, Interim Corrections Director, requested authorization to appoint an
interim Corrections Administrator to help maintain the chain of command and to assist
him with day-to-day duties.  He said the difference in salary will be $262 per month.

Amundson asked Johnson whether he has an individual in mind.  Johnson said he does
but would like to explain why he selected this individual to the other lieutenants before
making a formal announcement.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Schorr seconded to allow Brad Johnson, Interim
Corrections Director, to proceed with a temporary Corrections
Administrator assignment.  Schorr, Hudkins, Avery and Amundson voted
yes.  Wiltgen was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



C) Part-Time Attorney - Joe Nigro, Public Defender 

Joe Nigro, Public Defender, said two of the attorneys in his office are expecting babies
at the end of July and both are planning to take 12 weeks of maternity leave.  He said
an attorney who had previously worked in the office is willing to come back on a
temporary, part-time basis (24 hours a week) at a rate of $40.00 an hour.  Nigro said
he would like the attorney to start on July 26th, which is one week before the two
attorneys’ due dates.  He noted he was considering another attorney who was willing to
work full-time at the time he submitted the budget request but that attorney has
accepted other employment. 

Meyer suggested that Public Defender’s Office try to absorb the cost through their
budget and said adjustments could be made later, if necessary.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Schorr seconded to authorize a temporary, part-time
attorney position for the Public Defender’s Office, as outlined.  Hudkins,
Avery, Schorr and Amundson voted yes.  Wiltgen was absent.  Motion
carried 4-0.

RETURNING TO BUDGET UPDATE

Meyer noted additional items that were not reflected in Exhibit A:

• Reductions in expenditures from Corrections of approximately
$460,000

• The debt service payment for the Mental Health Crisis Center will not
be charged until April 1, 2017, a $72,000 reduction in rent

• $25,000 for public relations and $15,000 for travel have been pulled
from the Administrative Services budget

• Additional $156,000 in revenues based on motor vehicle tax and in-
lieu-of-tax collections 

Those items will reduce the deficit by approximately $750,000.  

Meyer said there is a $612,000 increase projected in the Building Fund for the coming
year (see Exhibit A) and recommended cutting that amount by half, which will reduce
the County’s deficit by $306,000.  He said the fund will have to be closely monitored
because of the move to the 605 Building.  Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment (FF&E) costs
are estimated at $1,000,000 and there could be cash flow issues.  Meyer recommended
delaying some projects, such as converting the garage area at the Motor Vehicle Facility
at 625 North 46th Street, expansion of the County Extension Building at 444 Cherrycreek
Road, and a new Adult Probation reporting center in the Municipal Services Building at
901 West Bond Street, until Trabert Hall (2202 South 11th Street) is sold.  He noted

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



there is approximately $400,000 in other projects that have been carried over for
several years and said one that will have to be addressed is replacement of the cooler
in the heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) system at the Youth Services
Center (YSC) (approximate cost of $100,000).  Meyer also indicated plans to move the
$175,000 that will remain in the Debt Service Fund when that Fund is closed out to the
Building Fund to help cover the FF&E costs for the 605 Building. 

Amundson said Pam Dingman, County Engineer, has expressed concerns about some of
the older County Engineering buildings.  Meyer said it is his understanding that
Dingman has set aside some funds in Sinking Funds to address their buildings. 

Meyer said other budget items that still need to be addressed include:

• Out-of-state travel
• Pre-sentence investigation (PSI) agreement with State Probation

Administration
• Vehicles
• Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) levy

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Report on Conversation with Governor Ricketts

Schorr said she recently had a conversion with Governor Ricketts and she informed him
the County Board has had difficulty setting up a meeting with Courtney Phillips, Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). 
She said the Governor agreed to follow up.  Governor Ricketts also mentioned there
has been an increase in the federal aid buyback program.  He said 90 counties have
moved to the State’s computer system and asked that Lancaster County consider doing
so as well. 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

B. National Association of County Officials (NACo) Voting Credentials

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, said she contacted the National
Association of County Officials (NACo), as a follow-up to discussion at the June 9th

County Board Staff Meeting, and was told it doesn’t matter what entity paid the
registration for the credentialed individual as long as they are registered and the voting
credentials form has been submitted.  

Schorr said she is very interested in serving as Lancaster County’s credentialed
representative. 

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



 4 SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE BOND ISSUE - Dr. Paul Illich,
Southeast Community College (SCC) President

Dr. Paul Illich, Southeast Community College (SCC) President, gave a presentation on
Southeast Community College, The Future of Southeast Nebraska, 1-Year Facilities
Master Plan (Exhibit B), noting plans to seek a general obligation bond to fund the
facilities master plan.  

Hudkins said SCC’s plans to build a new downtown campus in the Telegraph District are
highly controversial because it will displace park space and the baseball diamonds.  He
noted SCC is already established on Energy Square and Lincoln Electric System (LES)
has plans to vacate its building on that block and asked Dr. Illich whether consideration
has been given to locating there.  Dr. Illich said this was what was recommended in the
Plan but said there will be ongoing conversations.

Schorr inquired about parking.  Dr. Illich said that will require a separate study.

Avery inquired about reception to the proposal at the University of Nebraska-Lincoln
(UNL).  Dr. Illich said President Hank Bounds and Chancellor Ronnie Green have been
very supportive.

 5 605 BUILDING UPDATE - Don Killeen, County Property Manager; Greg
Newport, The Clark Enersen Partners (Architect)

Greg Newport, The Clark Enersen Partners, said the project to remodel the 605 Building
is on schedule.  NOTE: The building is scheduled to be completed in March, 2017.  He
said a decision was made to replace the generator and natural gas and diesel options
were studied.  The Public Building Commission (PBC) decided to proceed with a request
for proposal (RFP) for a diesel generator.  Newport said there may be salvage value in
the old generator which would help offset the cost of a new generator.  He also
reported on a change order request to re-caulk every building joint, estimating the cost
at $50,000.  Newport said the building has never been re-caulked and said it is
essentially a deferred maintenance issue.

Newport also reported County Veterans Services Center’s plans to relocate from Trabert
Hall to the Veterans Administration (VA) Medical Center Campus fell through and it will
be moving to the third floor of the 605 Building instead.  Don Killeen, County Property, 
Manager, said that change should not affect the construction schedule.

In response to a question from Hudkins, Killeen said the intent is to reuse as much
furniture as possible.

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



Schorr asked when they plan to remove the Corrections signage.  Newport said the
signage was not part of the scope of the project but said they will look into it. 

 6 CRISIS CENTER CONSTRUCTION UPDATE - Scott Etherton, Crisis
Center Director; Don Killeen, County Property Manager

Scott Etherton, Crisis Center Director, said the Nebraska Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) conducted its walk through of the new facility on Friday and
has issued a license for the facility.  Some furniture has been moved from the Crisis
Center’s current location and the remaining furniture and office equipment and clients
will be moved later in the month.

Hudkins asked Etherton what they plan to do about the cameras.  Etherton said he
believes some of the cameras should have been included in the bid process.  Hudkins
asked whether there will be a credit for equipment Etherton would like to change out. 
Don Killeen, County Property Manager, said the cameras can be switched out, using the
overall camera contract, and utilized in another part of the campus.

Schorr asked for an update on door locks.  Etherton said the Public Building
Commission (PBC) has approved replacement of two bathroom locks and said a solution
was worked out for a third door.  Killeen said the changes will not delay the move-in
schedule. 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

G. Claim for Review - PV 529866 in the Amount of $3,508.00. to Norix
Group Inc, Submitted by the Mental Health Crisis Center.  The Amount
of This Purchase Requires a Purchase Order.

Scott Etherton, Crisis Center Director, gave an explanation of the claim.

In response to a question from Schorr, Bob Walla, Purchasing Agent, appeared and
relayed that the purchase was in accordance with the State of Nebraska contract price.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to schedule the item as a claim for
review on the Tuesday, June 21, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting
agenda.  Avery, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted yes. Wiltgen was
absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



D. Procedure for Avalon Event Paradise and Hillside Events Public
Hearings on June 28, 2016

NOTE:  David Cary, Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department Director; Tom
Cajka, Planner II; and David Derbin, Deputy County Attorney, were present for the
discussion.

David Derbin, Deputy County Attorney, recommended the Board revise the Guidelines
for Public Participation at Meetings of the Lancaster County Board of Commissioners to
provide the ability to reduce the time limit for those testifying at public hearings to
three (3) instead of five (5) minutes and to indicate that the Board now meets at 9:00
a.m. instead of 10:30 a.m.  There was consensus to schedule revision of the guidelines
on the June 21, 2016 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

Dan Nolte, County Clerk, suggested the public hearings be held after new business
items on that date.

Schorr asked Tom Cajka, Planner II, for suggestions on how to prepare or make the
process go smoother.  Cajka suggested the Board ask those who are testifying at the
public hearings not to repeat testimony.  He also noted one individual who testified at
the Planning Commission’s public hearing on Hillside Events’ request for a special
permit for expanded home occupation (Special Permit No. 16021) requested and was
provided additional time to give a PowerPoint presentation.  Cajka said that individual
will likely make the same request at the Board’s public hearing.  Derbin suggested the
document be provided to the Board prior to the meeting to provide additional time for
review.

Hudkins requested a copy of the expanded home occupation section of the Lancaster
County Zoning Regulations (see Exhibit C).

 7 ACTION ITEMS

A. Development and Conditional Zoning Agreement for the   
Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Property 

NOTE:  David Cary, Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department Director; Tom
Cajka, Planner II; David Derbin, Deputy County Attorney; and Don Killeen, County
Property Manager, were present for the discussion.

Eagan said he was contacted by Kent Seacrest, legal counsel for Bryan Medical Center
(the adjoining property owner), who indicated the hospital is willing to agree to the
following in accordance with a B-3 (Commercial) zoning change for the property:

• One parking stall per 331 square feet and required parking stalls shall
be provided on site 

• O-2 (Office) zoned signage
• 20' parking setback and 20' building setback for new construction

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



David Derbin, Deputy County Attorney, said City Council members have already been
provided copies of the Development and Conditional Zoning Agreement (see Exhibit D)
in their agenda packet for the June 20th City Council Meeting and would like a signed
copy that can be executed.  Eagan said if the Board is amenable to the changes the
hospital has proposed, it could offer a signed version with those revisions. 

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize the Chair to sign two
documents: 1) The Development and Conditional Zoning Agreement; and
2) A revised Development and Conditional Zoning Agreement with the
changes proposed by Bryan Medical Center.

Tom Cajka, Planner II, said he believes when Seacrest requested a 20' setback it was
intended to be along South 17th Street for parking stalls, not all sides of the building. 
Eagan said this is additional, explaining the hospital is seeking it for the building as
well.

The maker of the motion and the seconder withdrew their motion and asked staff to
contact Seacrest for clarification.

 8 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

 9 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Agenda Items for the City-County Common Meeting (Monday, June
27th, 12:45 p.m., Room 113)

There was consensus to carry forward the Juvenile Court functions under the County
Attorney’s Office item that was scheduled on the May meeting agenda (that meeting
was cancelled).

B. National Association of County Officials (NACo) Voting Credentials

Hudkins felt the voting credentials were assigned to him when the Board authorized
him to attend the 2016 NACo Annual Conference and said the Board was not aware at
that time that Schorr would be attending the conference on behalf of the Nebraska
Association of County Officials (NACO).

RETURNING TO ITEM 7A

Cajka said he contacted Seacrest and he emailed Cajka a draft revised agreement (see
Exhibit E).  He said Seacrest worded the setback language as follows: 

In the case of new construction of a building or parking area, there shall
be a 20' setback along S. 17th Street.  Section 27.72.080 (b) shall not
apply to enable any reduction of said 20' setback requirement.

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize the Chair to sign two
documents: 1) The Development and Conditional Zoning Agreement; and
2) A revised Development and Conditional Zoning Agreement with the
changes proposed by Bryan Medical Center.  Hudkins, Avery, Schorr and
Amundson voted yes.  Wiltgen was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

RETURNING TO ITEM 9B

Schorr said she did not believe that budgeting funds for Commissioner Hudkins to
attend the 2016 NACo Annual Conference automatically authorized him be credentialed
as the delegate.  

Hudkins asked Schorr if there is a reason that she doesn’t want him to have voting
credentials.

Schorr said she is excited about the opportunity to learn more about NACo and to build
relationships with the incoming NACo officers, adding that would be beneficial to
Lancaster County and in her role on the Nebraska Association of County Officials
(NACO) Board of Directors.  She cited several items coming before the full delegation:
1) Bylaw changes; 2) A change in how voting points are allocated to each of the
counties; and 3) Election of NACo Second Vice President (see Exhibit F for the
candidates’ biographies).  Hudkins said Schorr will have those opportunities whether
she has voting credentials or not.  Avery noted Commissioner Hudkins’ term on the
Board will end in 2016 (Hudkins did not seek re-election) and suggested Wiltgen attend
instead as he will have at least two more years on the Board.  Hudkins responded that
he really wanted to represent the County one time at the NACo annual convention and
said he intends to share what he learns in the sessions with the Board.  Avery said one
of the reasons for attendance is to be able to come back and add value to service on
the County Board and said Hudkins only has a short time left.  Hudkins said it is an
added benefit to have two Commissioners attend the conference and said he would
make sure that Schorr was included in any crucial votes.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize Commissioner
Schorr to serve as Lancaster County’s credential representative at the
2016 National Association of County Officials (NACo) Annual Conference. 
Schorr voted yes.  Hudkins and Amundson voted no.  Avery was not
voting.  Wiltgen was absent.  Motion failed 1-2, with one Commissioner
not voting.

MOTION: Avery moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize Commissioner
Hudkins to serve as Lancaster County’s credential representative at the
2016 National Association of County Officials (NACo) Annual Conference
and Commissioner Schorr to serve as the alternate.  Avery, Hudkins and
Amundson voted aye.  Schorr was not voting.  Wiltgen was absent. 
Motion carried 3-0, with one Commissioner not voting.

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



C. National Incident Management System (NIMS) Training 

Eagan said he will consider participating in the training if his workload permits. 

D. Procedure for Avalon Event Paradise and Hillside Events Public
Hearings on June 28, 2016

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

E. Draft Annual Report Outline

The Board reviewed the draft (see agenda packet) and the Chair asked that each
department and elected official submit a paragraph outlining the highlights,
accomplishments and challenges of the past fiscal year.

F. Claim for Review - Payment Voucher (PV) 530069 in the Amount  of
$856.63, to Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director.  This Cell
Phone Purchase Did Not Go Through the County’s Verizon. 
Representative and Did Not Utilize the County Contract for Cell
Phones.

Eagan said Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, has withdrawn her claim and
indicated plans to return the equipment and use the grant funds in some other way.  

It was noted the standard procedure is to schedule claims for review for either approval
or denial on a regular County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

MOTION: Avery moved and Hudkins seconded to direct Kerry Eagan, Chief
Administrative Officer, to schedule denial of the claim on the to schedule
the item as a claim for review on the Tuesday, June 21, 2016 Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.  Schorr, Hudkins, Avery and Amundson
voted aye.  Wiltgen was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.

G. Claim for Review - PV 529866 in the Amount of $3,508.00. to Norix
Group Inc, Submitted by the Mental Health Crisis Center.  The Amount
of This Purchase Requires a Purchase Order.

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

10 PENDING

There were no pending items.

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



11 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Information Services Policy Committee (ISPC)

The meeting was cancelled.

B. Cornhusker Girls State - Wiltgen

Thorpe said Commissioner Wiltgen met with Cornhusker Girls State participants and
answered questions regarding county government.

C. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

The meeting was cancelled.

D. Region V Services Executive Committee - Wiltgen

No report.

E. Region V Services Governing Board - Wiltgen

No report.

F. Region V Systems Governing Board - Wiltgen

No report.

G. Region V Systems Executive Committee - Wiltgen

No report.

H. Chair/Vice Chair Meeting with Mayor - Amundson

Amundson said she asked the Mayor to join her in filming videos in support of the
Lancaster Event Center’s bid to host the 2020 National High School Rodeo Finals
(NHSRF).  She said Governor Ricketts will be asked to make a video in support of the
event as well.

I. District Energy Corporation (DEC) - Hudkins/Schorr

Hudkins said the DEC Board held discussion with Lincoln Electric Systems (LES)
leadership, consultants, and a tax attorney on what direction DEC should take in the
future.  He noted DEC can only be expanded to 10% of its aggregate load since DEC
was organized.  Hudkins said they assessed where it might be appropriate to expand
with consensus to concentrate on the 16th Street Corridor.

Page 12 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016



J. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Amundson/Hudkins

Amundson said they discussed change orders for the Mental Health Crisis Center and
605 Building, which included expanding the scope of service to include Veterans
Services.

K. Board of Health - Avery

Avery said they received a report on a new warning from the Centers for Disease
Control (CDC) on Human papillomavirus (HPV).  He said the virus has become so
common that everyone is likely to be infected and the CDC is recommending that boys
and girls, ages 11-12, be vaccinated.  Avery said they also received a briefing from the
Lincoln Police Department (LPD) on the Respond, Empower, Advocate, Listen (REAL)
Referral Program.

12 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items.

13 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Avery seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:42 a.m. 
Avery, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Wiltgen was absent. 
Motion carried 4-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 13 BOC/STAFF/06/16/2016


































































































































